
          

 

 

ARBORWOOD 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

LEE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APRIL 24, 2023 
9:00 A.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Special District Services, Inc. 

27499 Riverview Center Boulevard, #253 
Bonita Springs, FL 33134 

www.arborwoodcdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

 ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Amenity Center Community Room 

Somerset at the Plantation 
10401 Dartington Drive 

Fort Myers, Florida, 33913 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

April 24, 2023 
9:00 A.M. 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. March 20, 2023 Regular Board Meeting……………………………………………………….......Page 2 

G. Old Business 

1. Update on Tree Line/Plantation Gardens New Developments Assessment Analysis 

2. Update Regarding Road and School Impact Fee Credits 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Proposal for Tree Line Lighting and Repairs……………………………….……………Page 6 

2. Consider Approval Lake Bank Repairs…………………………………………………………….Page 7 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Manager’s Report 

a. Financials……………………………………………………………………………………….Page 35 

2. Attorney’s Report 

3. Engineer Report 

4. Field Inspectors Report 

5. Woods and Wetlands Report 

J. Board Members Comments 

K. Adjourn 



Miscellaneous Notices 

Published in The News-Press on April 10, 2023 

Location 
Lee County, Florida 
Notice Text 

NOTICE OF CHANGE OF DATE OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT The Board of 
Supervisors (the "Board") of the Arborwood Community Development 
District (the "District") will hold a Regular Board Meeting (the "Meeting") 
on April 24, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. in the Amenity Center Community Room, 
Somerset at the Plantation, 10401 Dartington Drive, Fort Myers, Florida, 
33913, instead of April 17, 2023, as previously advertised. The purpose 
of the Regular Board Meeting is for the Board to consider any business 
which may properly come before it. The Meeting is open to the public 
and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law 
for community development districts. The Meeting may be continued in 
progress without additional notice to a time, date, and location stated 
on the record. A copy of the agenda for the Meeting may be obtained 
from the District's website or by contacting the District Manager, Special 
District Services, at (941) 223-2475. There may be occasions when one 
or more Supervisors will participate by telephone. Pursuant to provisions 
of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special 
accommodations to participate in this Meeting is asked to advise the 
District Office at least forty-eight (48) hours before the Meeting by 
contacting the District Manager at (561) 630-4922. If you are hearing or 
speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service at 1 (800) 955-
8770, who can aid you in contacting the District Office. A person who 
decides to appeal any decision made at the Meeting with respect to any 
matter considered at the Meeting is advised that person will need a 
record of the proceedings and that accordingly, the person may need to 
ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made including the 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. Meetings 
may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. District 
Manager Arborwood Community Development 
District www.arborwoodcdd.org No. 5649105 April 10, 2023 

 

Page 1



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MARCH 20, 2023 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The March 20, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Arborwood Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 9:00 a.m. in the Amenity Center Community Room of the Somerset at the 
Plantation located at 10401 Dartington Drive, Fort Myers, Florida 33913. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in the Fort 
Myers News-Press on March 10, 2023, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was in order to 
proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairman Joan Pattison Present 
Vice Chairman Jeff Gordish Present 
Supervisor Jack Aycock Present 
Supervisor Donald Schrotenboer Present 
Supervisor Karin Hagen Absent 

 
Staff members in attendance were: 
 
District Manager Michelle Krizen Special District Services, Inc. 
General Counsel Wes Haber (via phone) Kutak Rock, LLC 
District Engineer Ryan Lorenz JR Evans Engineering 
Field Inspector Bohdan Hirniak  

 
Also present was Bethany Brosious of Passarella & Associates. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
Ms. Shoney asked about the monuments on the easement.  Mr. Haber explained that they were not CDD 
property.  There is a likelihood that the new owners will remove the monuments. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  February 20, 2023, Regular Board Meeting 
 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

The February 20, 2023, Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for consideration.   
 
Under Items C and E, Helen Shoney should read Helen Shorey. 
 
Under H3, it was noted that “sot he payment can be processed.” should read “so the payment can be processed.” 
 
A motion was then made by Mr. Schrotenboer, seconded by Mr. Aycock and passed unanimously approving 
the February 20, 2023, Regular Board Meeting minutes, as amended. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Update on Tree Line/Plantation Gardens New Developments Assessment Analysis 
 
Mr. Haber explained that the debt analysis would be unchanged due to the wording in the bond documents and 
original methodology.  The Board was disappointed with that finding but understood.  Mr. Gordish requested 
training and a look at O&M to see if changing the O&M would be beneficial.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Gordish, seconded by Mr. Aycock and passed unanimously authorizing Mr. 
Schrotenboer to work with staff to facilitate a review of District process and dive deep into the O&M to see if 
we can make assessment changes. 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Update on Tree Line Lighting and Repairs 
 
Mr. Gordish met with the owner of American Infrastructure, Todd.  During that meeting they inspected every 
light pole,  The tenons at the top of the poles are bent on a significant amount of poles.  The option to shim the 
lights back square or replace the poles was verbally presented.  Mr. Gordish instructed him to provide a 
proposal and send it to the District Manager.  The District Manager has followed up on this item but had not 
yet received it at the time of this meeting.  Ms. Krizen will continue to follow up with American Infrastructure.  
 
 2.  Discussion Regarding Plantings in Preserve and Plant Inspector 
 
Mr. Aycock noted that the previous policy was no planting in the preserves; however there is a list of allowable 
plants.  A discussion ensued.  Should the Board allow planting?  Who would monitor it?  Marina Bay preserves 
are in the HOA name and the HOA is responsible.  Why are those preserves not the CDD’s responsibility?  
Mr. Aycock will look into why they are not the CDD’s responsibility and  Ms. Brosious will look at the e-
permitting to see how it was permitted.  
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2023-02 – Adopting a Public Records Retention Policy Option 2 
 
Resolution No. 2023-02 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE ARBORWOOD 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT PROVIDING FOR THE 
APPOINTMENT OF A RECORDS MANAGEMENT LIAISON OFFICER; 
PROVIDING THE DUTIES OF THE RECORDS MANAGEMENT LIAISON 
OFFICER; ADOPTING A RECORDS RETENTION POLICY; DETERMINING THE 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

ELECTRONIC RECORD TO BE THE OFFICIAL RECORD; AND PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Mr. Haber explained there were two options, both of which make the electronic records the official records 
with no hard copy requirements.  The difference in the options is the transitory records (replying about 
meeting status or other communications) are not required to be saved with Option 1. Option 2 saves 
everything.  

 
A motion was made by Mr. Schrotenboer, seconded by Mr. Gordish and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2023-02 Option 2, as presented. 
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  Manager’s Report 
 a. Financials 
 
The year-to-date budget was shared with the Board.  There were no questions. 
 
It was noted that the next meeting was scheduled for April 17, 2023.  There was a consensus of the Board to 
change the date to April 24, 2023.  It was also noted that the preliminary budget was scheduled for May 15, 
2023. 
 
 2.  Attorney’s Report 
 a. Update Regarding Road and School Impact Fee Credits 
 
Mr. Haber explained this was a topic that had been previously addressed.  The County has the CDD owning 
credits that were allocated to the County.  Jon Asher, a former CDD Chair, was signing the credits divided 
amongst the property owners (builders).  There are credits from 2005 and 2007 the County has said were never 
transferred.   Mr. Schrotenboer stated if the builder had them, they would use the credits, as they are close to 
$1 Million.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Aycock, seconded by Mr. Gordish and passed unanimously authorizing Mr. 
Schrotenboer to work with District staff to determine how the credits were assigned to confirm the ownership 
of the remaining credits.  
 
 3.  Engineer’s Report 
 
The Lake Bank Report has been emailed to the Board for review. The lake bank issue remedies will be 
presented at the next meeting.  
 
 4.  Field Inspector’s Report 
 
Mr. Hirniak noted that the lakes looked good, the levels were doing what they were supposed to do.  A resident 
reached out concerning a dead tree in the preserve.  The owner was concerned it would fall and damage his 
property.  Both the District Engineer and Bethany Brosious from Passarella & Associates will follow up on 
this matter. Since the tree is in a preserve and it is a habitat, an inspection and a permit must be issued from 
South Florida Water Management District before any action can be taken.  
 
J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

Page 4



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

There were no further comments from the Board Members. 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Aycock, seconded by 
Mr. Schrotenboer and passed unanimously adjourning the Regular Board Meeting at 10:05 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



GENERAL INFORMATION
Property Name Somerset
User/Assessor Name Ryan Miller
Assessment Date 04/12/2023
Owner or Management Company JR Evans
Types of Devices

Drainage

SITE OBSERVATIONS
Device Type and/or Number 12887 Epping Way

Observation #1
2 basins

Image 1.1

Dragonfly Pond Works

Date: 04/13/2023Site Inspection &amp; Assessment

Submitted by Ryan Miller at 04/13/2023 21:04 EDT Page: 1
Captured at 04/13/2023 21:03 EDT
Submission ID: B9094D8A-42B8-44F4-96F1-056F4CF7956F

Page 14



Image 1.2

Access Considerations
Lot

Access Image 1

Device Type and/or Number 12871/12867 Epping Way

Dragonfly Pond Works

Date: 04/13/2023Site Inspection &amp; Assessment

Submitted by Ryan Miller at 04/13/2023 21:04 EDT Page: 2
Captured at 04/13/2023 21:03 EDT
Submission ID: B9094D8A-42B8-44F4-96F1-056F4CF7956F

Page 15



Observation #1
1 basin

Image 1.1

Access Considerations
Lot

Access Image 1

Dragonfly Pond Works

Date: 04/13/2023Site Inspection &amp; Assessment

Submitted by Ryan Miller at 04/13/2023 21:04 EDT Page: 3
Captured at 04/13/2023 21:03 EDT
Submission ID: B9094D8A-42B8-44F4-96F1-056F4CF7956F

Page 16



Device Type and/or Number 12807/12804 Epping Way
Observation #1

12804-7 3 basins
Image 1.1

Image 1.2

Dragonfly Pond Works

Date: 04/13/2023Site Inspection &amp; Assessment

Submitted by Ryan Miller at 04/13/2023 21:04 EDT Page: 4
Captured at 04/13/2023 21:03 EDT
Submission ID: B9094D8A-42B8-44F4-96F1-056F4CF7956F

Page 17



Image 1.3

Access Considerations
Lot

Access Image 1

Device Type and/or Number 12808 Epping Way

Dragonfly Pond Works

Date: 04/13/2023Site Inspection &amp; Assessment

Submitted by Ryan Miller at 04/13/2023 21:04 EDT Page: 5
Captured at 04/13/2023 21:03 EDT
Submission ID: B9094D8A-42B8-44F4-96F1-056F4CF7956F

Page 18



Observation #1
Needs basin

Image 1.1

Access Considerations
Lot

Access Image 1

Dragonfly Pond Works

Date: 04/13/2023Site Inspection &amp; Assessment

Submitted by Ryan Miller at 04/13/2023 21:04 EDT Page: 6
Captured at 04/13/2023 21:03 EDT
Submission ID: B9094D8A-42B8-44F4-96F1-056F4CF7956F

Page 19



Device Type and/or Number 12872/12874
Observation #1

1 basin
Image 1.1

Access Considerations
Lot

Dragonfly Pond Works

Date: 04/13/2023Site Inspection &amp; Assessment

Submitted by Ryan Miller at 04/13/2023 21:04 EDT Page: 7
Captured at 04/13/2023 21:03 EDT
Submission ID: B9094D8A-42B8-44F4-96F1-056F4CF7956F

Page 20



Access Image 1

Device Type and/or Number 12878/12884 Chadsford
Observation #1

4 basins
Image 1.1

Dragonfly Pond Works

Date: 04/13/2023Site Inspection &amp; Assessment

Submitted by Ryan Miller at 04/13/2023 21:04 EDT Page: 8
Captured at 04/13/2023 21:03 EDT
Submission ID: B9094D8A-42B8-44F4-96F1-056F4CF7956F

Page 21



Image 1.2

Image 1.3

Observation #2
W

Dragonfly Pond Works

Date: 04/13/2023Site Inspection &amp; Assessment

Submitted by Ryan Miller at 04/13/2023 21:04 EDT Page: 9
Captured at 04/13/2023 21:03 EDT
Submission ID: B9094D8A-42B8-44F4-96F1-056F4CF7956F

Page 22



Image 2.1

Access Considerations
Lot

Access Image 1

Device Type and/or Number 12909 Hadley Ct

Dragonfly Pond Works

Date: 04/13/2023Site Inspection &amp; Assessment

Submitted by Ryan Miller at 04/13/2023 21:04 EDT Page: 10
Captured at 04/13/2023 21:03 EDT
Submission ID: B9094D8A-42B8-44F4-96F1-056F4CF7956F

Page 23



Observation #1
Fill sod

Image 1.1

Image 1.2

Access Considerations
Lot

Dragonfly Pond Works

Date: 04/13/2023Site Inspection &amp; Assessment

Submitted by Ryan Miller at 04/13/2023 21:04 EDT Page: 11
Captured at 04/13/2023 21:03 EDT
Submission ID: B9094D8A-42B8-44F4-96F1-056F4CF7956F

Page 24



Access Image 1

Device Type and/or Number 12905/12636 Hadley Ct
Observation #1

1 basin
Image 1.3

Dragonfly Pond Works

Date: 04/13/2023Site Inspection &amp; Assessment

Submitted by Ryan Miller at 04/13/2023 21:04 EDT Page: 12
Captured at 04/13/2023 21:03 EDT
Submission ID: B9094D8A-42B8-44F4-96F1-056F4CF7956F

Page 25



Access Considerations
Lot

Access Image 1

Device Type and/or Number 12737 Gladstone
Observation #1

Basin?

Dragonfly Pond Works

Date: 04/13/2023Site Inspection &amp; Assessment

Submitted by Ryan Miller at 04/13/2023 21:04 EDT Page: 13
Captured at 04/13/2023 21:03 EDT
Submission ID: B9094D8A-42B8-44F4-96F1-056F4CF7956F

Page 26



Image 1.1

Image 1.2

Access Considerations
Lot

Dragonfly Pond Works

Date: 04/13/2023Site Inspection &amp; Assessment

Submitted by Ryan Miller at 04/13/2023 21:04 EDT Page: 14
Captured at 04/13/2023 21:03 EDT
Submission ID: B9094D8A-42B8-44F4-96F1-056F4CF7956F

Page 27



Access Image 1

Device Type and/or Number 1820/12850 Kingsmill
Observation #1

4 basins
Image 1.1

Dragonfly Pond Works

Date: 04/13/2023Site Inspection &amp; Assessment

Submitted by Ryan Miller at 04/13/2023 21:04 EDT Page: 15
Captured at 04/13/2023 21:03 EDT
Submission ID: B9094D8A-42B8-44F4-96F1-056F4CF7956F

Page 28



Image 1.2

Image 1.3

Dragonfly Pond Works

Date: 04/13/2023Site Inspection &amp; Assessment

Submitted by Ryan Miller at 04/13/2023 21:04 EDT Page: 16
Captured at 04/13/2023 21:03 EDT
Submission ID: B9094D8A-42B8-44F4-96F1-056F4CF7956F

Page 29



Image 2.1

Access Considerations
Lot

Access Image 1

Device Type and/or Number Golf 12509 Chadsford

Dragonfly Pond Works

Date: 04/13/2023Site Inspection &amp; Assessment

Submitted by Ryan Miller at 04/13/2023 21:04 EDT Page: 17
Captured at 04/13/2023 21:03 EDT
Submission ID: B9094D8A-42B8-44F4-96F1-056F4CF7956F

Page 30



Image 1.1

Access Considerations
Path

Access Image 1

Device Type and/or Number 10311 Glastonbury

Dragonfly Pond Works

Date: 04/13/2023Site Inspection &amp; Assessment

Submitted by Ryan Miller at 04/13/2023 21:04 EDT Page: 18
Captured at 04/13/2023 21:03 EDT
Submission ID: B9094D8A-42B8-44F4-96F1-056F4CF7956F

Page 31



Observation #1
1 basin

Image 1.1

Access Considerations
Lot

Access Image 1

Dragonfly Pond Works

Date: 04/13/2023Site Inspection &amp; Assessment

Submitted by Ryan Miller at 04/13/2023 21:04 EDT Page: 19
Captured at 04/13/2023 21:03 EDT
Submission ID: B9094D8A-42B8-44F4-96F1-056F4CF7956F

Page 32



Device Type and/or Number Dart- Golf
Observation #1

Wash out
Image 1.1

Access Considerations
Path

Dragonfly Pond Works

Date: 04/13/2023Site Inspection &amp; Assessment

Submitted by Ryan Miller at 04/13/2023 21:04 EDT Page: 20
Captured at 04/13/2023 21:03 EDT
Submission ID: B9094D8A-42B8-44F4-96F1-056F4CF7956F

Page 33



Access Image 1

ADMIN AUTHORIZATION
Date 04/13/2023

Dragonfly Pond Works

Date: 04/13/2023Site Inspection &amp; Assessment

Submitted by Ryan Miller at 04/13/2023 21:04 EDT Page: 21
Captured at 04/13/2023 21:03 EDT
Submission ID: B9094D8A-42B8-44F4-96F1-056F4CF7956F

Page 34



Page 35



Page 36


	Arborwood Community Development District - April 24, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	March 20, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Proposal for Tree Line Lighting and Repairs
	Consider Approval Lake Bank Repairs
	Financials




